
TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden, Kent. TN30 6AN 
 

Website: www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01580 762271 

 

 

Email: townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk  
Facsimile: 01580 765647 

 

 

Tuesday, 8 September 2020 
EXTERNAL COMMITTEE 

 
Notice is given that a Virtual meeting of the EXTERNAL COMMITTEE will be 

held on MONDAY, 14TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 following meetings of the Town 
Council and Internal Committee which start at 7.00 pm. 

Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81533238026  
 
All members are summoned to attend for the purpose of considering and 

resolving upon the business to be transacted at the meeting. 

 
Phil Burgess, Town Clerk. 

 
Councillors Serving: M. Carter, J. Crawford, Mrs. J. Curteis (Vice-Chair), M. Hickmott, K. Mulholland, J. Nelson 
(Chair), R. Parkin and R. Quinton. 
Substitutes in the event of members’ absence: Cllrs Mrs. S.  Ferguson, Dr.  L. Lovelidge and Mrs. K. Walder. 
 

AGENDA 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE & SUBSTITUTING COUNCILLORS.  

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 

3.   MINUTES. 
To consider and, if approved, confirm and sign the minutes and reports of 
the meeting held on 10th August 2020 as a correct record. 

 
4.   MATTERS ARISING.  

 
5.   REPRESENTATION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC. 

Members of the public may make personal representations at this meeting by giving written notice of a request to speak and indicating 

briefly the matter of interest or relevant agenda item to the Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk no later than 12 noon on the day of the 

meeting. Provided always that speakers are resident in a ward of the Council and, give their full name and address prior to speaking, 

the committee Chairman may (or may choose not to) invite individuals to speak at the relevant point in the meeting. Speeches may 
not exceed three minutes duration and speakers may not participate in any subsequent debate between committee members. At the 

Chairman’s discretion, only one speech may be made in support of each side of any contentious issue. 

 
6.   COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS. 

At the Chairman’s discretion, Councillors may ask a question about any item relevant to this committee that is not on the agenda. 
Every question shall be put and answered without discussion. An answer may take the form of a direct oral answer or reference to a 

Town Council publication. Where a reply cannot be conveniently given at this meeting, an oral or written answer may be circulated at a 

later date. All councillors present will be permitted to contribute to the debate on agenda items but only members of this committee will 

be permitted to vote. 

 
7.   SUB-COMMITTEE & WORKING GROUP REPORTS. 

 
(a) Kiln Field and Wildlife Venues Sub-committee. To note a report 

from a meeting on 7th August 2020 and consider recommendations 

therein. * 
(b) Climate Change Sub-committee. A report from the meeting on the 

10th September. (To be tabled) 
(c) Donations Sub-committee. To consider the award 

recommendations of this sub-committee. (To be tabled). 

 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

Public Document Pack

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81533238026


 

8.   HEDGE TRIMMER ATTACHMENT. 
To consider a lease arrangement for a hedge trimmer attachment if 
approved by Internal Committee. * 

 (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

9.   INDEPENDENT HIGH STREET SURVEY. 
To note the results of an independent survey by the Our Tenterden 
organisation. * 

 (Pages 9 - 37) 
 

10.   CORRESPONDENCE. 
None. 
 

11.   MINOR MATTERS. 
 

(a) Tributes in the Park.  To note a letter of thanks from the organisers 
of Tributes in the Park. * 

(b) Community Litter Pick. To note the date of the next Community 

Litter Pick of Sunday, 27th September 2020 from 10am to 12 noon. 
* 

 (Pages 38 - 39) 
 

12.   ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY NOTIFIED TO THE 
CHAIR. 
No decision may lawfully be made under this item but matters which involve no more than an exchange of information may be 

discussed. 

 
 

 
End. 
 
Attachments and tabled documents can be obtained from the Town Clerk’s office or downloaded from www.tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk. 



TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL – EXTERNAL COMMITTEE   

KILN FIELDS RESERVE AND WILDLIFE VENUES SUB-COMMITTEE   

NOTES OF A MEETING HELD ON 07.08.20 

 

PRESENT: 

Town Councillors: Mrs. Jean Curteis, Callum Knowles, Dr. Lisa Lovelidge(Chair). 

Non-Councillors: Dave Bourner, Jon Burnell, Roger Finniss, Peter Friend.   

Tenterden Town Council Staff: Lesley Owers taking notes. 

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR.  Dr. Lisa Lovelidge was voted Chair.  Lisa would like 

the Town Clerk to enquire if the councillors who were absent would still like 

to be members of the sub-committee, as meetings were often unable to go 

ahead due to being inquorate. 

 ACTION: Town Clerk to enquire whether the councillors who were absent 

would still like to be members of the sub-committee. 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND INTRODUCTIONS. Apologies for 

absence were received from Mrs. Kate Walder.  An introduction was made to 

Peter Friend who lives in Abbots Way, who had expressed an interest in 

joining the sub-committee. 

3. MINUTES OF SITE MEETING HELD ON 6TH FEBRUARY 2020. The 

minutes of the site meeting held on 6th February were agreed. 

4. MATTERS ARISING.  None. 

5. UPDATE FROM MAINTENANCE TEAM ON WORK CARRIED OUT SINCE 

LAST MEETING. Roger advised that they had cleared the majority of the 
Himalayan Balsam and had shredded some of the brambles for wildlife 

habitat.  The remainder of the willow wood would be given away. The weld 
mesh for the safety gates at each end of the culvert was ready to be put in 
place. Jon Burnell had been monitoring the Chelsea Cut which we were 

advised to do by Colin Reader and Jon was pleasantly surprised at the 
amount of butterflies, pollenators and wildlife present on this designated 

patch.  Jon also reported that common newts were breeding in large 
numbers in the pond and there were small frogs and the arrival of marsh 
frogs.   

When Donald Duffus cleared the pond he kindly sowed some wildflower seeds 

on the bank of the pond and cornflowers had started to come up.   

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 7



 Dave and Roger had planted 150 plug plants in the Millenium Gardens but 
unfortunately there are now only around 120 left due to vandals. These are 

now ready to be planted out.  

 When Colin Reader revisited Kiln Field he was pleasantly surprised at how 
many wildflowers there were.  He spotted some Wild Lettuce – which is not 

native to this area, Pyramid Orchids and Frogspit in the pond.  He said that 
we are creating some good wildflower and wildlife areas within the town. 

6. REPLACEMENT OF GATE AT THE ENTRANCE TO KILN FIELD. Dave 

Bourner expressed his concern about the condition of the wooden gate at the 
entrance to Kiln Field as the wood had rotted.  The pedestrian access gate 
was also in a bad condition and could be replaced at the same time. Peter 

Friend pointed out that the side gate was not wheelchair friendly and 
suggested that whilst replacing both gates that the pedestrian gate 

replacement should provide disabled access.  It was agreed to investigate the 
possibility of replacing both the main gate and pedestrian access gate with 
Ashford Borough Council as this is an issue with security of the site.   

  
ACTION: To look at the Lease Agreement with Ashford Borough Council to 

check who is responsible for the gates and to contact ABC. 
 
7. POST AND RAIL FENCING AROUND PERIMETER. Dave Bourner was 

concerned that on the Redrow site it looked as though there was no longer a 
green corridor showing between the garden fences of the proposed new 

houses and the site boundary.  Dave had discussed his concerns previously 
with the Town Clerk. Callum Knowles advised that if this was the case then 
there was no point in us erecting another fence alongside it and advised that 

if that was the case, then we needed to find out from Redrow what type of 
fencing they were planning on erecting as we would have to have the same.   

 
ACTION: To check this with Redrow and to fence off our boundary as soon 
as possible.  

 
8. POND DIPPING PLATFORM AND FOOTPATH. The Committee agreed to 

accept the quotation from Marmax for the 100% recycled pond dipping 
platform at a total cost of £2678.50 plus VAT and to order this as soon as 

possible.  Recycled pond dipping platforms are very difficult to find so we 
only had one quotation for this.  Specialist installers of recycled platforms  
are hard to find and it was agreed to accept the quotation we had received 

from Ray Sargent of Holwood Ground Maintenance at a cost of £3600 plus 
VAT. Ray was recommended to us by Marmax as he has vast experience 

installing recycled pond dipping platforms.  This will now go to the External 
Committee for approval on 14th September 2020.    

 We had also received quotations from Ray Sargent and George Bryant for 
construction of the pathway leading down to the platform which would be 

DDA compliant. After consultation of the sub-committee, it was agreed that 
the surface of the pathway would need to be a resin/bonded surface rather 

Page 2



than Type 1. This is because the wetter months could be a challenge and a 
resin surface would give easier traction especially for wheelchair users. 

Peter Friend advised that he had looked after the pond in Goudhurst and that 

the pond at Kiln Field is likely to be contaminated and the water must be 
tested before the pond dipping platform is put into use by the public.  Roger 

Finniss advised that testing would definitely be carried out and the water 
would be tested regularly but he was quietly confident that the water quality 

was good due to the fact that there was Frogspit in the pond and also due to 
the evidence of wildlife that is presently in the pond. 

Peter Friend requested that the work on the platform and the footpath should 
be done before the rainy season because of the impact of heavy machinery 

on the ground. 

ACTION: To request new quotations for a resin surface for the footpath.  

9. POSSIBLE ADVICE FROM A WOODLAND EXPERT. It was agreed that we 

should seek advice from a woodland expert on how we could improve the 

woodland at Kiln Field.  Peter Friend commented that there is great potential 

for development and growing an entirely different range of vegetation.  

Roger Finniss commented that there is an ancient woodland the other side of 

the gill and that the mature woodland the other side is self governing with 

bluebells. Frankie Woodgate from Weald Woodscapes had agreed to do a site 

visit to Kiln Field, free of charge for the initial visit, to discuss the 

committee’s overall vision for the woodland. During the visit she would give 

us an idea of where she may be able to help further with potential on-going 

management of the site.  

Cllr. Mrs. Curteis suggested that we ask, if on the same day, that Frankie 

could visit St. Michael’s Recreation Ground to give us advice on native 

species of trees. 

ACTION: To email Frankie and to arrange a meeting date for both projects. 

10. PROPOSED GRASS VERGE TO BE LEFT TO WILD FLOWERS BETWEEN 

COLONEL STEPHENS WAY AND HENLEY MEADOWS. It was agreed to 
ask for delegated authority from Kent County Council to leave this specified 

area to wildflowers.  Lisa Lovelidge suggested that we should look at other 
areas around the town. Roger Finniss suggested the area outside Westwell 
opposite West View.   

 ACTION: To contact Paul Woodhatch at KCC about the grass verge at 

Colonel Stephens Way. 

11. AN UPDATE ON GRASS VERGES AROUND THE TOWN FROM DAVE 
BOURNER, ROGER FINNISS AND JON BURNELL WHO HAS 

VOLUNTEERED TO MONITOR THE VERGES. The maintenance team 
advised that they will carry on mowing until the drainage is improved in the 

culvert in the Dene at the bottom of St. Michael’s Recreation Ground. They 

Page 3



have bought a new springtime harrow so when it is mowed in September 
they can use it for raking up and can sow in the autumn.   

 Colin Reader advised that the triangle section in Appledore Road was not 

suitable to be left to wildflowers and was best to be left to wildlife.  There is a 
rumour that a consultant was looking at the drainage there and that KCC are 

going to clear it.  Callum advised that if the triangle is to be cleared that we 
need to make it clear that is not being carried out by Tenterden Town 

Council. 

Lisa requested that if there are any other grass verges which could be left to 
wildflowers that signs are erected on these.  Jon Burnell has asked for a list 
of designated grass verges to be sent to him so that he can start to monitor 

them and keep a record.   

The current designated grass verges in the town are at the entrance to Chalk 
Avenue, Craythorne, the verge opposite the Fat Ox and the wildflower 

meadow at the bottom of St. Michael’s Recreation Ground.  

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS.  Peter Friend expressed his concerns at bonfire 
activity on the site, as there was a day when a bonfire did cause an issue for 

him and his neighbours in Abbots Way.  He advised that the Ashford Borough 
Council website stated that people should be told when bonfires will be taking 
place.  Callum advised Peter that this is a recommendation only and not a 

requirement. Roger reported that there was one day of burning brambles 
which was a necessity but they had written permission from Ashford Borough 

Council to do so.  Roger advised that they do as little burning as they need to 
and they felt that they would rather burn these responsibly, rather than 
somebody else come along and set fire to them for a fun thing to do.  Roger 

apologised to Peter, as this did cause an issue at the time and he guaranteed 
that there would be no more burning as such, as the brambles that are left 

will be used for the wildlife habitat. 

Peter Friend requested on behalf of his wife, that we erect a sign advising 
people not to park in the corner where the pedestrian entrance is, as cars 
often park in such a way that their drive is blocked.  Callum advised Peter 

that it is an adopted road and that we can ask people nicely to park 
responsibly but we cannot enforce it. A ‘No Parking in front of these gates’ 

sign had already been ordered to be erected on the gate.  Roger suggested 
that as the new passenger gate would give disabled access that we could 

either bollard the road in front or yellow cross hatch it.  Callum suggested 
speaking to Mike Hill to ask if the road to the entrance could be crosshatched 
because of the proposed disabled access gate. 

 ACTION: To speak to Mike Hill about the yellow crosshatching.  

13. ELECTION OF NEW COMMITTEE MEMBER – PETER FRIEND.  Peter 

Friend who lives in Abbotts Way was voted in as a new member of the sub- 
committee.  

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING.  To be confirmed. 

Page 4



 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXTERNAL COMMITTEE: 

(i) Membership of the sub-committee to be clarified. 

(ii) To note our approach to Ashford Borough Council to request that the main 

gate and passenger gate at the entrance to Kiln Field are replaced, as the 
wood has rotted and for the passenger gate to be replaced with a DDA 
compliant gate to provide disabled access. 

(iii) To agree to the quotation to install post and rail fencing to define the 
boundary between Kiln Field and the Redrow development.  

(iv) To agree to the quotation from Marmax for a 100% recyclable pond dipping 
platform which will be DDA compliant. 

(v) To agree to the quotation for a resin bonded, non-slip pathway leading down 

to the pond dipping platform, which will be DDA compliant. 

 

 

Page 5



No. Description Quantity
Unit of 
Measure Unit Price

Disc. 
%

Unit Price 
Less Disc Amount

BESPOKE BOARDWALK Pond Dipping Platform 1.00 Each 2,498.50 2,498.50 2,498.50
5500mm x 3000mm
CARRIAGE/PACKAGING/WAR 1.00 180.00 180.00 180.00

Total £ Excl. VAT 2,678.50
20% VAT 535.70

Total £ Incl. VAT 3,214.20

Do not hire any contractors or extra staff until in receipt of goods
Your Internal Sales Contact is:

Telephone No.:
E-Mail:

All business is subject to our terms and conditions that can be read at:
Prices exclude VAT
Please note this Quotation is valid for 4 Weeks

AREA 47
01207 283442
sales@marmaxproducts.co.uk

http://www.marmax-products.uk/terms

Quote No.

Shipment Date

Bill-to Customer No.

Registration No.
VAT Registration 
No.

HomePage
Phone No.

County Durham

Your Reference

SQ008874

Your Reference20/03/20

TENT01

1661404
GB 706 651 637

www.marmaxproducts.co.uk

United Kingdom

01207 283442

TENTERDEN, KENT TN30 6AN

Stanley, DH9 9QX
 24 HIGH STREET

Tanfield Lea South Ind Est.

TOWN HALL

Units 9-16

LESLEY OWERS

Marmax Products Ltd

TENTERDEN TOWN COUNCIL

Sales - Quote 

20/03/20

Page 1

E-Mail sales@marmaxproducts.co.uk

Document Date

Payment Terms 30 Days from End of Month
Campaign No.
Shipment Method

AREA 47Salesperson

Page 6



External Committee 14th September 2020 
Hedge Trimming attachment for Tractor 

 
Referred also to the Internal Committee. 
 
This issue was considered a while ago but rejected at the time because it was difficult to find a 
trimmer suited to the old tractor which had a very limited capacity for attachments. Storage was 
also an issue. The new tractor has no such restrictions and will take heavier duty attachments. 
 
Hedge trimming is a large part of the caretaker scheme and we have many of our own hedges which 
require attention regularly. 
 
Currently, when there is a big job required (such as the recent cut-back of the Bowls Club hedge) we 
call in an outside contractor. The Bowls Club hedge cutback cost £2800. 
 
The end-of-season cut back for all hedges around the town in our care is also undertaken by 
contractors at a price of £3,250. 
 
Throughout the bird nesting season minor trims are done to the hedges and shrub beds. These are 
currently carried out using hand-held trimmers. This is very time-consuming and involves a clear-up 
operation after the trim.   
 
An automated attachment for the tractor would both trim and mulch the clippings in a fraction of 
the time. No clear up is required as the environmentally friendly clippings remain at the base of the 
hedge acting as a mulch. 
 
It would allow us to keep all hedges and shrubs looking good throughout the year. The labour time 
involved in doing the end-of-season cutback would be more than compensated by the time savings 
against the use of hand-held tools. 
 
The following machines are available from Lister Wilder 
https://wessexintl.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/0674-WXI-CountryLine-Bro.pdf 
https://www.ryetec.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Ryetec-SL420-SL320-Compact-Sidearm-
Flail.pdf 
These machines are priced at £12334 and £12874 respectively 
Alternatively, there is a lease plan costing £274 p.c.m. over 48 months with a £100 initial charge 
(total cost £13252). 
 
The purchase break-even time would be 4 years based solely on the end-of-season cut and lot 
shorter period if additional major cuts are required. The lease payment would be roughly equivalent 
to one end-of-season cut p.a. The advantage of having the equipment available full time is 
considerable. 
 
Proposal: That the council should adopt a leasing arrangement for the hedge trimmer (should this 
be agreed by the internal committee). 
 
 
 
Phil Burgess 
Town Clerk 
 
Impact on Crime and Disorder : None 
Impact on Bio-diversity  : Beneficial 
Budgetary Impact  : Not budgeted but favourable 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

https://wessexintl.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/0674-WXI-CountryLine-Bro.pdf
https://www.ryetec.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Ryetec-SL420-SL320-Compact-Sidearm-Flail.pdf
https://www.ryetec.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Ryetec-SL420-SL320-Compact-Sidearm-Flail.pdf


Buckingham Leasing Limited 
Waterfield House 
Wellmore 
Maids Moreton 
MK18 1QQ 
W:www.buckinghamleasing.co.uk 
E: enquiries@buckinghamleasing.co.uk 

A Partner of the AGF Group 

Registered in England Number: 4637226; VAT Registration 844673501 
 Regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Ian Bridges 
E: ian.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk 
M: 07966114191 
Jack Bridges 
E: jack.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk 
M: 07515662628 
Peter Maple 
E: peter.maple@buckinghamleasing.co.uk 
M: 07513563565 

CONTRACT HIRE QUOTATION 

Asset Side Arm Hedge Cutter 11/08/2020 

Documentation Fee   £100.00 

Rental Profile 48 months 

Monthly Payment £274.00 + VAT 

Service Cost

- The monthly service cost is interest free at £41.25 + VAT per month

Finance is restricted to business users only; available subject to status and credit acceptance, all 
applicants must be 18 or over. The figures are correct at the time of printing but are subject to 
change prior to signing. A documentation fee will apply. Alternative finance products and 
services are available; we offer monthly/ quarterly/ annual or bespoke payment packages on 
request. Terms and conditions apply. 

Quote is valid for 30 days from date stated above. 

Contact: Jack Bridges  
M: 07515662628 
E: jack.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk 

Page 8

http://www.buckinghamleasing.co.uk/
mailto:enquiries@buckinghamleasing.co.uk
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.agfgroup.co.uk%2Fimages%2Fagf_logo.gif&imgrefurl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.agfgroup.co.uk%2F&docid=QD9K0kIRQZwIYM&tbnid=3Sou_41V1RaqlM%3A&vet=10ahUKEwi7_r_4nfjiAhVkURUIHYHLDgwQMwhGKAMwAw..i&w=175&h=92&bih=857&biw=1707&q=the%20agf%20group&ved=0ahUKEwi7_r_4nfjiAhVkURUIHYHLDgwQMwhGKAMwAw&iact=mrc&uact=8
mailto:ian.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk
mailto:jack.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk
mailto:peter.maple@buckinghamleasing.co.uk
mailto:jack.bridges@buckinghamleasing.co.uk


P
age 9

A
genda Item

 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12



●

●

●

P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



●

●

●
●

P
age 18



●

●

P
age 19



●

●

●

●

●

P
age 20



●

●

●
●

●

P
age 21



●
●
●
●
●
●

P
age 22



●

●

●
●

P
age 23



P
age 24



●
●

●
●

P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



●

●

●

P
age 30



Positives
● Supports cafes and 

restaurants
● Encourages add on 

sales in area
● Top 3 choice for 

‘target market’.
● Top 3 choice 

overall for age 
groups.

● Potential for more 
disabled parking

Negatives
● Relocation of free 

parking
● Comes under the 

remit of KCC, not 
ABC, or TTC.

P
age 31



●

●

P
age 32



How old are you? Answer Count % of vote

18-24 No 23 50.00%

Yes 23 50.00%

18-24 Total 46 6.00%

25-31 No 19 38.00%

Yes 31 62.00%

25-31 Total 50 6.52%

32-38 No 33 57.89%

Yes 24 42.11%

32-38 Total 57 7.43%

39-45 No 32 52.46%

Yes 29 47.54%

39-45 Total 61 7.95%

How old are you? Answer Count % of vote

45-51 No 56 57.73%

Yes 41 42.27%

45-51 Total 97 12.65%

52-60 No 114 62.98%

Yes 67 37.02%

52-60 Total 181 23.60%

61-69 No 86 58.50%

Yes 61 41.50%

61-69 Total 147 19.17%

70 or over No 77 60.16%

Yes 51 39.84%

70 or over Total 128 16.69%

P
age 33



P
age 34



●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

P
age 35



●

●

●

●

P
age 36



●

●

●

●

●

●

P
age 37



P
age 38

A
genda Item

 11



Volunteer Litter Pick in Tenterden & St. Michaels 

Sunday, 27th September 2020 from 10am to 12pm 

Meet near the Public Toilets,  

Tenterden Recreation Ground  

All equipment - litter pickers, bags, gloves,   

high visibility tabards - will be provided, but feel free to bring your own 

ALL VOLUNTEERS WELCOME,  

COME AND JOIN US! 

Organised by Tenterden Town Council 

Contact:  Tenterden Town Council,  

Town Hall, 24 High Street, Tenterden.   

Tel:  01580 762271 or email:  

townhall@tenterdentowncouncil.gov.uk 

GREAT BRITISH SEPTEMBER CLEAN 

Page 39


	Agenda
	7 SUB-COMMITTEE & WORKING GROUP REPORTS.
	EXT7a Marmax Platform Quote

	8 HEDGE TRIMMER ATTACHMENT.
	EXT8 Hedge Side Arm Cutter - Finance

	9 INDEPENDENT HIGH STREET SURVEY.
	11 MINOR MATTERS.
	Litter Pick Poster 27th September 2020


